
Goodhue County Planning Commission

Government Center - Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

6:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

March 20, 2023 PAC Meeting Minutes Draft

MINUTES_DRAFT_MARCH_2023.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For CUP To Establish A Liquid Manure Storage Basin 
Exceeding 500,000 Gallons

Request, submitted by Anthony Scheffler (Owner) to construct a concrete liquid 

manure storage basin capable of holding up to 2,700,000 gallons at a 275.5 animal unit 

dairy facility that contains a confinement barn, partial confinement barns, and open lot 

areas without runoff controls. Parcel 38.009.0200. 14874 410th Street Zumbrota MN, 

55992. Part of the NE ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 9, TWP 110, Range 16 in Minneola 

Township, Goodhue County. A-1 Zoned District.

PACPACKET_SCHEFFLER_REDACTED.PDF

Other-Discussion

Ordinance Amendment Discussion

STAFF REPORT.PDF

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

http://mn-goodhuecounty.civicplus.com/


Goodhue County Planning Commission

Government Center - Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

6:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

March 20, 2023 PAC Meeting Minutes Draft

MINUTES_DRAFT_MARCH_2023.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For CUP To Establish A Liquid Manure Storage Basin 
Exceeding 500,000 Gallons

Request, submitted by Anthony Scheffler (Owner) to construct a concrete liquid 

manure storage basin capable of holding up to 2,700,000 gallons at a 275.5 animal unit 

dairy facility that contains a confinement barn, partial confinement barns, and open lot 

areas without runoff controls. Parcel 38.009.0200. 14874 410th Street Zumbrota MN, 

55992. Part of the NE ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 9, TWP 110, Range 16 in Minneola 

Township, Goodhue County. A-1 Zoned District.

PACPACKET_SCHEFFLER_REDACTED.PDF

Other-Discussion

Ordinance Amendment Discussion

STAFF REPORT.PDF

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

https://co.goodhue.mn.us/be1ff97b-9b40-4d4e-922f-45b429fbcb07


Page 1 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 March 20, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 
The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 6:00 
PM by Chair Chris Buck at the Goodhue County Government Center in Red Wing. 
Roll Call 
Commissioners Present: Tom Gale, Richard Miller, Darwin Fox, Chris Buck, Marc Huneke, and 
Todd Greseth.  
Commissioners Absent: Howard Stenerson, Richard Nystuen, and Carli Stark 
Staff Present: Land Use Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Samantha Pierret, Zoning 
Assistant Alexandra Koberoski, and Zoning Administrative Assistant Patty Field. 
 
1. Approval of Agenda 

 

1Motion by Commissioner Miller; seconded by Commissioner Fox to approve the meeting 
agenda. 
 
Motion carried 6:0 
 

2. Approval of Minutes  
 
2Motion by Commissioner Greseth; seconded by Commissioner Huneke to approve the 
previous month’s meeting minutes. 
 
Motion carried 6:0  
 

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  
 

Commissioner Gale will not be participating in this Public Hearing due to a conflict of 
interest.  
 

4. Public Hearings  
 
 PUBLIC HEARINGS: Hay Creek Campground (Gareth Brickzin, Owner) 
31655 HWY 58 BLVD Red Wing, MN 55066. Parcels 34.019.4000, 34.019.0900, 34.019.0901, 
and 31.024.0201. Part of the W ½ of Section 19 TWP 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek Township and 
Part of the SE ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 24 TWP 112 Range 15 in Featherstone Township. B and 
A-2 Zoned Districts.  

1. Map Amendment (Rezone) 
Request for map amendment to rezone parcel 34.019.4000 from B (Business District) to 
CR (Commercial Recreational District) and to rezone parcels 34.019.0900, 34.019.0901, 
and 31.024.0201 from A-2 (General Agriculture District) to CR. 
 
 
 



Page 2 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 March 20, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 
2. CUP for a Campground Expansion 
Request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to permit an existing campground to expand 
by 60 sites and add 6 cabins and additional campground facilities including bathhouses.    

 
Pierret presented the staff report and attachments for the Map Amendment and CUP request. 
 
Commissioner Fox requested the public hearing be opened before the Board discussion due to 
the large number of people in attendance.   
 
Chair Buck Opened the Public Hearing 
 
Pierret read an email dated March 14th from Jenny Shaw, 31651 Hwy 58, Red Wing, strongly 
opposing the expansion and rezoning due to increased nuisances and detrimental 
environmental effects that could be caused by the expansion.   
 
Brandy Anderson, 31473 Hwy 58, Red Wing, stated that her parents live nearby. She said that 
the expansion will decrease the home values and create more noise. She feels the email from 
Ms. Shaw reflects the concerns of all who live there.   
 
Brad Kolberg, 31524 Hwy 58, Red Wing, and Treasurer for Hay Creek Township said his 
house is across from the prime agricultural land that would be used for the campground 
expansion. He is upset that the owner didn’t approach the neighbors that will be affected to 
discuss the plans before going to the County. He added that it is beautiful to sit outside at night 
and not hear noise but that will not be the case after the campground expands. He is not happy 
that they plan to expand onto prime agricultural land that has been farmed for the last 100 
years.   
 
Deb Busby, 31696 Hwy 58 Red Wing, asked where the 24-hour security was because they are 
not taking care of the problems. There are drugs and other illegal activities including a 
stabbing incident at the campground.  She said it was very upsetting when she saw a Sheriff 
with their gun and lights looking for someone who committed an illegal act. There is noise and 
music with bands until midnight or 1:00 AM even though there is an 11:00 PM quiet time.  If 
she has a campfire in her yard, it gets so loud because of the campground that she and her 
friends have to sit right next to each other to have a conversation. 
 
Athena Reed, 410 4th Ave, Goodhue, works at the campground. She feels the Brickzins are the 
best thing to happen to Hay Creek Campground. Hearing the email opposing this request upset 
her. She noted that the Brickzins care about the valley and the campground’s effect on 
neighbors. She feels safe as an employee leaving by herself and participating in activities like 
horseshoes at the campground. She added that staff cannot control everybody that comes and 
their actions. The Brickzins are there almost every day in the summer. They took something 
good and made it better and people come back and they are turning customers away because 
they reach capacity almost every weekend. The owners treat everyone with respect and she 
has never had anyone complain to her.   
 



Page 3 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 March 20, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

Tracy Reese, 31583 Hwy 58 Red Wing, is concerned about the extra traffic and feels that 
Highway 58 cannot handle that additional volume. Campers turn around in her driveway and 
she had to put up signs to get them to stay out. She questioned how the expansion may affect 
the other private driveway down the road. She is also concerned about parking along Hay 
Creek Trail which creates congestion because people park on both sides of the road.   
 
Roger Sievers, 2355 Brooks Ave, Red Wing, requested the Commission approve the zoning 
change and campground expansion. He says Hay Creek Campground is a gem. He has been 
going to the campground for about five years and has seen significant improvements. He runs 
a marketing agency and said this is good for the County economically and feels the County 
should work with the property owners to achieve their proposal. He indicated that many of the 
people who live next to the campground moved in while there was a campground there and 
doesn’t think that fact should be overlooked.   
 
Brandy Anderson added that she moved there in 1979. She is not saying that the campground 
isn’t a great place but the problem is that it is so close to everybody’s property, in their 
backyards, and all around their houses.  The property values will drop, the noise will go up, 
the dirt, the garbage, everything is going to be everywhere.  She feels people would think 
differently if they lived in that area, instead of coming there just to go camping.    
 
Deb Busby added that fireworks start a month or more before July 4th and continue a long 
time after. The fireworks wake her up and cause her anxiety and she has to wear silencers to 
go back to sleep.     
 
Brad Kolberg said the statement that “everyone moved in after the campground was 
established” is not correct. He has lived there since 1960. He added that the campground did 
not start until the late 1970s.   
 
Paulette Gadient, 19616 340th, Goodhue, has lived in Hay Creek for 38 years. She said that the 
fireworks are everywhere. She can hear them at her farm and you can only control so much.  
You cannot blame the campground for all of the fireworks, it is also coming from surrounding 
properties.   
 
3After Chair Buck called three times for additional comments it was moved by 
Commissioner Fox and seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the Public 
Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 5:0 
 
Chair Buck asked the Applicant how much agricultural land is being used for the expansion. 
 
Mr. Brickzin indicated just one field off Highway 58 or about 7 acres. He knows it is under 10 
acres that will be impacted.     
 
Commissioner Huneke asked if it would be possible to restrict parking on one side or the other 
of Hay Creek Trail by the saloon to alleviate the issue of vehicles not being able to pass there.   



Page 4 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 March 20, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 
Mr. Brickzin said if he could get No Parking signs approved he would be happy to put them up.     
 
Commissioner Miller asked if this was a Township road.   
 
Pierret stated yes.   
 
Commissioner Miller said the Township would have to agree to the No Parking signs. He asked 
how many campsites are there presently. 
 
Mr. Brickzin stated there are currently 180 sites. 
 
Commissioner Miller asked if any of the sites are permanent.  He sees trailers sitting there all 
winter.     
 
Mr. Brickzin stated the trailers fluctuate throughout the year. They are not operating a mobile 
home park, it is people passing through that need a place to stay. They get a lot of nuclear 
plant workers that come in for a short amount of time and some from Knobelsdorff that pass 
through. People working at Prairie Island on the outage team or people doing storm work may 
stay during winter months. Some stay a couple of months, some stay for a few days.  
 
Commissioner Miller asked if these workers own the trailers that are there. 
 
Mr. Brickzin stated yes. 
 
Commissioner Fox asked how many of the sites are seasonal. 
 
Mr. Brickzin said there are about 11o seasonal sites now.   
 
Commissioner Fox confirmed that a lot of people leave their campers there over winter but are 
not staying there. 
 
Mr. Brickzin agreed. They have one row of campers you may see traffic in and out of over the 
winter. There are heat probes in the water well so they can use water all year. 
 
Commissioner Fox said that he wanted to get Mr. Brickzin’s thoughts on security for special 
events such as concerts. With the expansion, it may be worthwhile to look into hiring security 
to be on-site for the duration of these events.   
 
Mr. Brickzin said he has thought about that. He does try to keep a few people down there to 
keep an eye on everything but with the increased amount of campsites, that would be 
something to consider.   
 
Commissioner Fox said he has stayed at campgrounds that have events and they will hire 
extra security during these events.   
 



Page 5 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 March 20, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

Mr. Brickzin said he would not be opposed to doing that. 
 
Commissioner Huneke asked how many events were planned for the summer. 
 
Mr. Brickzin said there are about 6 planned events such as concerts plus small patio music on 
a couple of Friday nights. The normal cut-off time for the bands is either 10 or 11 at night.   
 
Hanni stated there was a question about the Sheriff and the calls for service. She believes the 
Sheriff does drive through regularly, as they would anywhere else.   
 
Pierret said she contacted the Sheriff’s office and they compiled the number of calls for service 
at the campground from 2018 – 2022, to get an idea of the numbers before Mr. Brickzin 
purchased it and after. There was an increase in calls but some calls were for medical events 
and welfare checks, which are not controllable. There were a couple of fireworks complaints 
and some suspicious activity complaints.   
 
Mr. Brickzin indicated they are not afraid to reach out to the Sheriff for help. They have had 
some suspicious activity with theft. Some catalytic converters were cut and a few campers 
were broken into. There have been multiple times they have reached out to the Sheriff asking 
them to do a drive-through. Mr. Brickzin wants the area to be safe. They don’t want someone’s 
items to get stolen or a camper to be broken into. Also, they offer parking for anyone visiting 
the state forest to park there so their vehicle is safe.   
 
Hanni said they are looking for two motions. Sam can explain the Commercial Recreational 
District and why it is important to change all of the campground’s parcels.  
 
Pierret said that most of the campground is in the B, Business District. Campgrounds are not 
allowed in a Business District so if something were to happen to any of the campground 
operations on that Business District parcel, those uses could not be re-established because it is 
a non-conforming use. Other campgrounds in Goodhue County are currently zoned 
Commercial Recreational. The other Brickzin properties are zoned Agricultural and a 
Conditional Use Permit could be applied for to establish a campground in an Agriculture 
district, but staff believes it is important to have all of the campground properties zoned the 
same to keep everything cohesive. It also makes it easier for staff to enforce the ordinances.   
 
Mr. Brickzin asked if he could address the comments/questions heard during the public 
hearing. He said the email that was read was very disheartening to him and he takes it 
personally. He apologized for not reaching out to the neighbors. He has a limited amount of 
time during the day and the County permit process is brand new for him. The comments about 
how he does not care about Hay Creek hurt. He and his wife are there 7 days a week and they 
have a camper down there. They are there more than at their residence in Welch. He is there 
all hours of the day and has invested a lot of money in the saloon building. Without the 
campground, he would not have been able to preserve that building. The saloon building is 
“Hay Creek”, it has been there since 1874. For the neighbors to say that he doesn’t care, that he 
is all about the dollar is not true. He has not even taken a paycheck. Everything that they make 
they have been investing into the campground.  This is a five-year expansion plan, not 



Page 6 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 March 20, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

something that would happen overnight. There is a lot of planning left to do, working with the 
state and he wants to be a good neighbor. He wants to put a nice fence up and some trees as 
screening. There is a gravel road (Hay Creek Trail) that kicks up a lot of dust and golf carts do 
kick up a little dust, but not like on the gravel road. He indicated that a lot of the neighbors, 
some who are here tonight and some who are not, use the campground.  Their kids play at the 
playground every day, their dogs run through, and they come to the live music. Some of the 
neighbor’s kids work at the saloon or the pool. They try to be good neighbors. 
 
4It was moved by Commissioner Miller and seconded by Commissioner Fox for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 
 and 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the map amendment request 
from Gareth Brickzin, Owner to rezone parcels 34.019.4000, 34.019.0900, 34.019.0901, and 
31.024.0201 from B (Business District) and A-2 (General Agriculture District) to CR 
(Commercial Recreational District). 
 
Motion carried 5:0 

Hanni said she believes the report stated approximately 60 new campsites. 

Pierret stated it should be “a maximum of” or “no more than”. Sixty is the maximum number of 
new campsites proposed. 

Commissioner Miller clarified that the maximum number of new cabins is still 6.  

Pierret stated yes, a maximum of 6 cabins.    

Hanni said that would be the one change for the motion.   

Commissioner Fox said he has one item he would like to see added as a condition because of the 
magnitude and size of the operation. He would like to add that security be provided on-site for 
special events such as concerts. It is as much for the owner’s protection as anything else.  It is 
also a safety factor for the neighbors to know someone is watching.   
5It was moved by Commissioner Miller and seconded by Commissioner Huneke to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• adopt the findings of fact; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 
and Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE Request for a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to permit an existing campground to expand by no more than 
60 sites, add no more than 6 cabins, and construct additional campground facilities 
including bathhouses. This permit shall revoke and replace CUP 1984-12 and the 2007 CUP. 
Subject to the following conditions: 
1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP; 

 



Page 7 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 March 20, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

2. Hours of operation for the saloon shall be year-round, 7-days per week from 9:00 AM to 
midnight; 

 
3. On-street parking and loading/off-loading shall be prohibited on Highway 58; 
 
4. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals for proposed structures from the 
Goodhue County Building Permits Department prior to beginning construction; 

 
5. Applicant shall obtain all appropriate well and septic system permits from the Goodhue 
County Environmental Health Department and/or Minnesota Pollution Control Agency prior 
to opening new campsites or cabins to the public; 

 
6. A contract with a licensed professional for septic inspection, upgrades, and preparation of 
an operating plan shall be submitted to Environmental Health staff prior to County Board 
consideration of this request; 

 
7. New campsites shall not open for public use until septic compliance is achieved to the 
satisfaction of the Goodhue County Environmental Health Department; 

 
8. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including Article 30 CR, Commercial 
Recreational District and Article 16 Section 7 Campground and Recreational Vehicle Site 
Regulations; 

 
9. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations. Proof of appropriate licenses and permits should be submitted to the Zoning 
Administrator prior to public use of new campsites, cabins, and bathhouses; 

 
10. Applicant shall submit a Land Alteration Permit and grading/erosion control plan or 
proof of an NPDES permit from the MPCA to the Zoning Administrator prior to beginning 
grading or excavation work on-site; 

 
11. Applicant shall plat the property in compliance with the Goodhue County Subdivision 
Ordinance prior to the issuance of any building permits for new structures; and 
 
12.  Security personnel shall be on-site during all outdoor special events and outdoor 
celebrations including, but not limited to, concerts.  

 

Motion carried 5:0 

 
Other Discussion 

There was no additional discussion. 
6ADJOURN: Motion by Commissioner Greseth and seconded by Commissioner Miller to 
adjourn the Planning Commission Meeting at 6:59 p.m.  

Motion carried 6:0 



Page 8 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 March 20, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Patty Field, Zoning Administrative Assistant 

 

MOTIONS 

1 APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda 
Motion carried 6:0 
2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes 
Motion carried 6:0  
3 Motion to close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 5:0 
4 APPROVE the request for map amendment 
Motion carried 5:0 
5 APPROVE the CUP request for expansion of campground 
Motion carried 5:0 
6 ADJOURN.  Motion to adjourn the meeting 
Motion carried 6:0 

                                                           





















 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management 
Meeting Date: April 17, 2023 
Report date:  April 7, 2023 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP to Establish a Liquid Manure Storage Basin Exceeding 
500,000 Gallons 
Request, submitted by Anthony Scheffler (Owner) to construct a concrete liquid manure storage 
basin capable of holding up to 2,700,000 gallons at a 275.5 animal unit dairy facility that contains a 
confinement barn, partial confinement barns, and open lot areas without runoff controls.  
  
Application Information: 
Applicant: Anthony Scheffler (Owner) 
Address of zoning request: 14874 410th  ST, Zumbrota, MN 55992 
Parcel(s): 38.009.0200 
Abbreviated Legal: Part of the NE ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 09 TWP 110 Range 16 in Minneola 
Township 
Zoning District: A-1 (Agriculture Protection District) 
Township: Minneola Township signed acknowledgment of the CUP request on March 8, 2023, with 
no additional comments. 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and project summary  
Site Map(s) 
Odor OFFSET calculations (Kelsey Petit, Feedlot Officer)  
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
The Applicant has an existing Feedlot registration for a 275.5 animal unit dairy facility. They are 
requesting to construct a 256-foot by 153-foot concrete liquid manure storage basin capable of 
holding up to 2,700,000 gallons to aid in the collection of runoff and manure management.   

The Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO) requires CUP approval for any animal waste storage 
basins exceeding 500,000 gallons.   

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission specifies 
facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, will not 
substantially diminish and impair property values within the immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal 
and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the 
area, that adequate measures have been, or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage and 
other necessary facilities, to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, 
fumes, dust, noise and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 
and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 
 
Project Summary:  
Property Information: 
 The 37.9-acre (approximate) property includes a dwelling, four accessory sheds, two cattle barns 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 

(one north of the proposed manure storage basin and one to the east), and tilled cropland.  

 The parcel and all adjacent properties are zoned A1. Surrounding land uses are primarily 
agricultural (feedlots and row-crop agriculture). The immediate area has very low-density 
residential uses. 

 Site access is via a crushed aggregate driveway located off 410th Street (crushed aggregate road) 
on the north side of the property. Emergency vehicle access appears adequate to service the 
property. The Applicant has stated they intend to establish a service road leading directly to the 
manure basin.  

Feedlot Facilities: 

 The Applicants are proposing to construct a 256-foot by 153-foot concrete manure storage basin 
capable of holding 2,700,000 gallons southwest of the existing cattle barns. The proposed 
manure storage basin will be used for the southerly two barns to manage the area as a confined 
feeding operation.  

Odor Offsets/Setbacks: 
 New construction on existing Feedlots is required to meet a 91% Odor Annoyance-Free Rating 

distance (as determined by the Odor OFFSET Evaluation Model) to existing dwellings. The 
proposed manure storage basin achieves a 93% Odor Annoyance-Free Rating distance to the 
nearest dwelling (on parcel 38.009.0201 owned by Anthony Scheffler TTEE), approximately 800 
feet to the northeast.  

 There are currently 6 dwellings located in Section 09. As an A1 zone, a maximum of 4 dwellings 
are allowed in the section and there is no more dwelling density available in the section. The 
sections to the east and west are also “full” A1 zoned sections. New dwellings cannot be located 
within 1,000 feet or 94% Odor Annoyance-Free Rating distance (as determined by the Odor 
OFFSET Evaluation Model) to existing Feedlot operations. 

 The proposed manure storage basin is sited to comply with all other setback standards of the 
GCZO including property lines, wells, septic systems, Shoreland, Floodplains, sinkholes, and 
Blufflands. The site is not located within an abandoned quarry. 

Drainage/Landscaping: 
 The site has relatively limited topographic relief with slopes of approximately 3.0% in the project 

area. The landscape drains generally towards the southeast towards an existing field drainage 
way. 

 There is an identified wetland located to the west of the project site. A silt fence will be installed 
along the west and south side of the project area prior to excavation activities and maintained 
until 70% vegetative cover is established. A 1-foot tall temporary earthen berm will be 
constructed north of the proposed manure basin to divert stormwater runoff away from the 
facility during construction.  

 A 4-foot tall woven wire fence will be constructed along the perimeter of the manure storage 
basin and include warning signs for safety.  

Nutrient/Waste Management: 
 The manure storage basin will accommodate approximately 12 months of manure storage 

capacity. 

 The Applicant stated the pit will take 3 to 4 days to empty, and manure will be land applied via 
hose in the spring or fall. The Applicants have provided appropriate manure ownership transfer 
and land spreading agreements.  

 The manure storage basin will be capable of holding up to 2,700,000 gallons. This accounts for 
liquid manure, runoff, and one foot of freeboard.  

County Feedlot Officer Comments: 
 Goodhue County Feedlot Officer Kelsey Petit reviewed the Application and provided the 

following comments: “Currently Scheffler Dairy are hauling manure each day from the dairy 
facility to nearby fields. On-site there is an existing slurry store that has not been utilized for 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 4 

manure storage since 2009 when Scheffler Dairy switched bedding materials. The proposed 
concrete 256 x 153 x 14 manure storage area (2.7 million gallons), allows the Schefflers to 
maximize the nutrient value of manure by land applying the dairy manure when the crops need 
it and/or when field conditions are fit. The design, operation, and maintenance of this proposed 
manure storage basin appears to meet state and county requirements to provide sufficient 
protection of water resources. With the 120 acres of their own land and another 1,002 acres of 
land application agreements for receiving manure, the Scheffler’s will be able to effectively 
utilize the dairy manure as valued fertilizer. The manure storage area will also be correcting a 
pollution hazard by collecting open-lot runoff and milk-house wastewater from the dairy 
facility.”  

 Goodhue County Water Planner Chad Hildebrand reviewed the Application and provided the 
following comments: “The wetlands located on the property will not be impacted by the 
proposed manure storage basin as laid out by the proposed plans. I communicated with the 
engineer on the project to assure the Wetland Conservation Act was followed if required. 
Additionally, I worked with them to ensure proper erosion control measures were in place to 
protect any wetland violations.  

I would like to point out that this project is located within the Greater Zumbro River Watershed. 
The Zumbro River Watershed Comprehensive Management Plan identifies these types of 
projects as priorities. We encourage landowners to implement Best Management Practices 
(BMPs) like a manure storage basin to help meet pollution reduction goals set for the 
watershed. As stated by the County Feedlot Officer, this practice will allow the landowner to 
store the manure during the winter months and apply it onto production ground during times 
of the year when crops can utilize the nutrients effectively.”  

Draft Findings of Fact: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 
and public hearing. 
 

1. The proposed manure storage basin does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of 
properties in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially 
diminish and impair property values in the immediate vicinity. The use is located in an A1 
(Agriculture Protection District) zone which is intended to allow for large-scale farming 
operations. There is also very low residential density in the surrounding area which limits the 
potential for future land-use conflicts. The proposal appears harmonious with the established 
uses in the vicinity which include primarily cropland and animal agriculture operations.  

2. The manure storage basin is not anticipated to impede the normal and orderly development or 
improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area. The proposal 
meets or exceeds all setback and development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning 
Ordinance and appears compatible with adjacent land uses.  

3. A review of the Applicant’s submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage, and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the proposed use.  

4. The property contains area to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the 
proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking requirements.  

5. The submitted plans detail adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance.  

Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for CUP, submitted by 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 4 

Anthony Scheffler (Owner), to construct a concrete liquid manure storage basin capable of holding 
up to 2,700,000 gallons at a 275.5 animal unit dairy facility that contains a confinement barn, partial 
confinement barns, and open lot areas without runoff controls. 
Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The manure storage basin shall be constructed according to submitted plans, specifications, 
and narrative unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 21 
(Agriculture Protection District) and Article 13 (Confined Feedlot Regulations); 

3. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations. 







































































 

 
“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 1 of 2 

 

Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax:  651.267.4875 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.267.4875 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 

Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 
 County Surveyor / Recorder 

 

 

TO: Planning Advisory Commission 
FROM: Land Use Management 
DATE: April 7, 2023 
RE: Ordinance Amendments Discussion 
 

Background: 

The Ordinance Subcommittee and staff have met twice to discuss amendments to the Zoning Ordinance 
for some definitions and replacing “Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agricultural Tourism” with 
“Rural Tourism”.  

Definitions: 

• Remove definition for Agricultural Land – outdated 
• Amend definition for Agricultural Operation to add property primarily used for… An Agricultural 

Operation would be a property where the agricultural products are being raised or produced, 
not a facility primarily processing agricultural products i.e. hay storage and shipping or a 
slaughterhouse.  

• Remove Agricultural Product, Value Added and Agricultural Related Products and add these 
items to the definition for Agricultural Product.  

• Amend definition for Agricultural Tourism to reflect the change in definition for Farm and 
Agricultural Operation and the addition of Rural Tourism.  

• Amend definition for Farm to modernize.  
• Remove Non-Agricultural Uses/Activities Associated with an Agri-Tourism Use. This will be 

replaced by Rural Tourism.  
• Add definition for Rural Tourism where tourism operations/activities no longer need to be tied 

to an active Agricultural Operation or Farm. 

Performance Standards:  

• Section 13. Bed and Breakfast Inns – remove language that is required for all Rural Tourism 
operations.  

• Remove Section 14. Educational Farm Retreat. There are no properties with an operating EFR 
and the concept is like an AirBnB or rental property which Goodhue County Zoning does not 
regulate or enforce.  

• Section 25. Retreat Centers – remove language that is required for all Rural Tourism operations.  



 

 
“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 2 of 2 

 

• Section 30. Replace Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agricultural Tourism with Rural 
Tourism. Requirements for an application and most performance standards remain the same. 
B&Bs and Retreat Centers are called out specifically because they both have separate 
performance standards apart from the Rural Tourism standards they must also comply with. 
Amended some standards so they are only applicable to operations with 50+ guests because 
Retreat Centers may have a maximum of 50 guests and B&Bs may have a maximum of 15 
guests. This will separate these less intense uses from the larger intensity uses such as wedding 
and event centers.  

Table of Uses: 

• Remove Educational Farm Retreats 
• Replace Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agricultural Tourism with Rural Tourism 

Discussion: 

The PAC should discuss these proposed amendments.  

Staff would like a consensus on which zones Rural Tourism is allowed. Staff has proposed allowing Rural 
Tourism as a Conditional/Interim Use in the A-1, A-2, and A-3 Districts (no change from Non-Agricultural 
Uses Associated with Agricultural Tourism).  

• B&Bs are a Conditional/Interim Use in the R-1 District where Rural Tourism is not a permissible 
use.  

• Retreat Centers are not permitted in the A-1 Zone where Rural Tourism is a Conditional Use. 
• Should Rural Tourism and/or Retreat Centers be added as a Conditional Use in the B, Business 

District?  













any increase in flood heights contributable to encroachment on the floodplain. It is 
the elevation to which uses regulated by this Ordinance are required to be elevated 
or flood-proofed. 

RETREAT CENTER. A private facility or facilities oriented to using the natural 
features and outdoor character of the area to offer professional, educational, 
recreational or religious meetings, seminars, workshops; or gatherings which may 
provide meals, temporary lodging, and passive recreation for visitors and may 
include multiple related uses managed as one operation. 

RIGHT-OF-WAY. A strip of land acquired by reservation, dedication, forced 
dedication, prescription or condemnation and intended to be occupied or occupied 
by a road, crosswalk, railroad, electric transmission lines, oil or gas pipeline, and 
other similar uses. 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINES. The lines that form the boundaries of a right-of-way. 

ROTOR. See Article 18 (WECS) 

ROTOR BLADES. See Article 18 (WECS) 

ROTOR DIAMETER. See Article 18 (WECS) 

RURAL TOURISM. Business which attracts visitors to rural areas of Goodhue 
Count) using the rural outdoor en ri.ronment for attractions that include. but are not 
limited to, retreats, weddings, re_ceptions, bed and breakfasts. educational events. 
and holiday celebrations. 

SCREENED. When a structure is built or placed on a lot or vegetation is planted 
such that when the structure is built, it is visually inconspicuous as viewed from the 
river during the summer months. Visually inconspicuous means difficult to see or 
not readily noticeable in summer months as viewed from the river. 

SELF-SERVICE STORAGE FACILITY. Real property designed and used for the 
purpose of renting or leasing secure outdoor storage space and/or self-contained 
indoor individual storage spaces to customers who have access for the purpose of 
storing and removing personal property. 

SENSITIVE AREAS. Shoreland, Floodplains, wetlands, bluff impact zones, bluff 
protection areas, and the Cannon River Recreational and Scenic Districts. 

SETBACK. The minimum horizontal distance between a structure or sewage 
treatmenl system and the ordinary high water level or between a structure or sewage 
treatment system, toe or top of a bluff, bluftline, road, highway or property line. 

SES (SOIAR ENERGY SYSTEM). See Article 19 (SES) 

SES, GRID-INERTIE. See Article 19 (SES) 

SES, GROUND MOUNTED. See Article 19 (SES) 

SES, COMMERCIAL. See Article 19 (SES) 

SES, OFF-GRID. See Article 19 (SES) 

SES, RESIDENTIAL. See Article 19 (SES) 

SES, UTILITY SCALE. See Article 19 (SES) 

SES, UTILITY-SCALED. See Article 19 (SES) 

SEWAGE TREATMENT SYSTEM. A septic tank and soil absorption system or 
other individual or cluster type sewage treatment system as described and regulated 
in Section 5.8 of this Ordinance. 

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 10 August 11, 2022 

spierret
Highlight















A-1 A-2 A-3 R-1 CS

P P P P P
NP NP NP P NP
P P P P P

C/I  C/I C/I NP C/I
NP NP NP  C/I NP

P P NP NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP NP
P P P NP NP
P C/I NP NP NP

C/I C/I NP NP NP

C/I C/I C/I NP NP

P P P NP P
P P P NP NP

C/I C/I C/I NP NP
P P P NP NP
P P P NP NP

C/I C/I C/I NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP C/I
C/I C/I C/I NP NP

I

P P P NP NP

P P P P P
P P P I I
I I I NP NP

C/I C/I C/Ibc NP NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I NP

Rural Tourism Facilities (Art.11 § 30) C/I C/I C/I bc NP NP
C/I C/I C/I NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP NP

P P NP NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP NP

a. Accessory buildings > 500ft 2  shall be ≥ 100ft from any lot line and ≥ 200ft from the nearest dwelling (Art.23 § 3 subd. 1)
b. Any mining, excavating, or filling of land for these uses shall be by conditional use (Art.23 § 3 subd. 10)

c. Accessory structures and uses customarily incidental to this use shall be by conditional use (Art.23 § 3 subd. 11)
KEY: P = PERMITTED     NP = NOT PERMITTED     C = CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT     I = INTERIM USE PERMIT     

1 Animal Unit per acre on a minimum 1-acre parcel

Junk/Salvage Reclamation Yard (Art.11 § 10)
Mining, Quarrying, Excavating/Filling  (Art.14)

Industrial

Contractors Yard (Art.11 § 33)
Veterinary Clinic

Home Businesses - Tier 3 (Art.11 § 12)
Commercial Kennel/Raising of fur-bearing animals (Art.11 § 26)
Commercial/Industrial Uses primarily intended to serve Ag. Community
Boarding or Rooming Houses as an accessory use
Bed and Breakfast Inn (Art.11 § 13)

Home Businesses - Tier 1 (Art.11 § 12)
Home Businesses - Tier 2 (Art.11 § 12)

Agricultural Tourism Accessory Uses (Art. 11 § 28) (including, but not limited to, barn dances, corn 
mazes, gift shops, petting farms, sleigh/hay rides, vineyard harvest festivals)

Commercial 

Farm Wineries > 10,000ft2 (Art. 11 § 27)

Two, Three, Or Four Family Dwellings

Mobile Home Park ( Art. 16 )
Residential Accessory Buildings ≥ 7,200ft2 (Art. 11 § 6)
Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) (Art. 11 § 31)

New Feedlot (Art.13)

Agricultural 
Feedlots (Art.13)

Farm Market/On-farm market/Roadside Stand < 2400ft2 (Art. 11 § 29)
Farm Market/On-farm market/Roadside Stand > 2400ft2 (Art. 11 § 29)
Plant Nurseries & Sales
Farm Wineries < 10,000ft2 (Art. 11 § 27)

GOODHUE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
Table of Uses

Use

Single-Family Dwelling

Temporary/Seasonal Off-Site Roadside Produce Stands
Education Farm Retreat (Art. 11 § 14)

New Feedlot outside of Farmyard (Art.13)

Residential 

Agricultural Operations (including tree farms) (Art.11 § 24)

Feedlot expansion up to ≤ 100 Animal Units (Art.13)
Feedlot expansion to ≥ 300 Animal Units (Art.13)
Feedlot expansion to ≥ 500 Animal Units (Art.13)
Animal waste storage structure ≥ 500,000 gallons (lagoon system, earthen basin, or associated 
structure [pit]) (Art.13)



A-1 A-2 A-3 R-1 CS

C/I C/I C/I NP NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP NP
NP NP NP C/I C/I
C/I C/I NP NP NP
C/I C/I C/I NP NP
NP C/I C/I NP NP

C/I C/I C/Iabc NP NP

NP C/I NP NP NP

NP NP C/Ibc NP NP

NP C/I C/I NP NP

C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I C/Ibc

C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I C/Ibc

C/I C/I C/Ibc NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP NP
NP NP C/Ibc NP NP

NP NP C/Ibc NP NP

P P P P P
P P C/I NP NP

C/I C/I NP NP NP
P P C/I NP NP

C/I C/I C/I NP NP
P P P P P
P P P P P

C/I C/I NP NP NP
C/I NP NP NP NP
C/I NP NP NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP NP
C/I C/I C/I NP C/I

GOODHUE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Table of Uses

KEY: P = PERMITTED     NP = NOT PERMITTED     C = CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT     I = INTERIM USE PERMIT     

WECS (Non-Commercial Micro) (Art. 18)

Commercial Outdoor Recreation Storage Structure (size & location to be approved by the Planning 
Advisory Commission)

Public Stable

Non-agricultural Lagoons (In accordance w/ MPCA regulations)
Migratory Labor Camp
Commercial Radio Towers/TV Towers/Transmitters

Institutional
Community Building

Cemetery
Memorial Garden

Park/Recreational Area (operated by a governmental agency)
Park/Recreational Area
Hunting Club/Shooting Preserve
Campground &/or RV Site (Art.16 § 7)
Park Manager's Residence (1 per campground/RV park w/ ≥ 30 campsites)

Recreational 

Miscellaneous

SES (Residential Scale) (Art. 19)
Aircraft Landing Fields & Facilities 

Use

Private School
Nursery School

Sanitary Landfills/Sewage Disposal Works

Commercial Outdoor Recreation Health Facilities

Retreat Centers (Art.11 § 25)

Church

WECS (Meteorological Tower) (Art. 18)

Funeral Home
Hospital, Sanitarium, Philanthropic/Eleemosynary Institutions (except correctional institutions, animal 
hospitals)

WECS (Non-Commercial)  (Art. 18)
WECS (Commercial) (Art. 18)

Public School

SES (Utility Scale)  (Art. 19)
SES (Commercial Scale)  (Art. 19)

Commercial Outdoor Recreation Facilities (including, but not limited to, Golf Courses/Driving Ranges, 
Tennis Courts, Skiing, Swimming Pools, Park Facilities)



B I

P NP
P NP

C/I NP
P NP

C/I NP
P NP
P NP
P NP
P NP
P NP

C/I NP

P NP
P NP
P NP
P NP
P NP
P NP
P NP

C/I NP

P NP
P NP

C/I NP

P P
     Building materials storage yards NP P
     Contractor's establishment, storage yard, or equipment rental NP P
     Grain elevator including storage and processing NP P

 Funeral Home
 Beauty shop or barber shop
 Bank or savings and loan institution

   Professional offices
   Drive-in establishment including banks and restaurant
   Eating or drinking establishment
   Motel
   Bed & Breakfast Inn

Industrial
     Assembly of previously prepared materials which have been manufactured elsewhere

Entertainment/Recreational Establishments
   Theater, dance hall, bowling alley, pool or billiard hall
   Public swimming pool, roller or ice rink

KEY: P = PERMITTED     NP = NOT PERMITTED     C = CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT     I = INTERIM USE PERMIT     

     Rural Tourism Facilities (Art. 11 § 30)

     Building supply sales
     Boat sales or repair
     Landscape nursery or commercial greenhouse
     Shopping center

Services

     Truck sales or service, truck wash or truck repair garage

GOODHUE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
Business and Industrial Districts Table of Uses

Use
Retail

   Retail stores under 40,000 square feet
   Automotive service station
   Retail stores over 40,000 square feet

     Automobile sales, car wash, trailer sales or service, auto repair garage, or automobile rental
     Motor fuel station
     Agricultural equipment sales or service



B I
NP P
NP P

NP P

NP C/I
NP C/I
P P

NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I

C/I C/I

P P
C/I P
NP C/I
NP P
C/I C/I
P P
P P

C/I C/I
P P

C/I C/I

SES (Residential Scale) (Art. 19)
Commercial Radio Towers/TV Towers/Transmitters

KEY: P = PERMITTED     NP = NOT PERMITTED     C = CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT     I = INTERIM USE PERMIT     

WECS (Non-Commercial Micro) (Art. 18)
WECS (Non-Commercial)  (Art. 18)
WECS (Commercial) (Art. 18)
WECS (Meteorological Tower) (Art. 18)
SES (Utility Scale)  (Art. 19)
SES (Commercial Scale)  (Art. 19)

  Residence when included as part of the principal building occupied by owner or their employee
  Self service storage facility

Miscellaneous

   Fertilizer manufacture, compost or storage
   Refining or recovery of products from animal refuse or offal
   Junkyard
   Livestock feeding yards, slaughtering of animals or stock yards
   Petroleum or asphalt refining or manufacturing
   Smelting or refining of metals from ores
   Steam board hammers or forging presses
   Storing, curing, or tanning of raw, green or salted hides or skins

Institutional
Church

 Explosives manufacture or storage

Use
Wholesale establishment: warehousing, storage buildings, commercial laundries or dry cleaning plants
Manufacture, compounding or treatment of materials
Manufacturing process or treatment of products using light machinery; such as tool and die shops or 
metal fabricating plants
Manufacturing of cement, lime, gypsum or plaster
Distillation of bone, coal, tar petroleum, refuse, grain or wood

   Essential services building or storage yards

GOODHUE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Business and Industrial Districts Table of Uses




